GAIL WALDMAN
48 CROMWELL AVENUE

HIGHGATE

LONDON N6 5HL
28 February 2024

Edward Hodgson,

Planning Department

Camden Council

Dear Edward,

2024/0012/P: 194 Goldhurst Terrace
I saw that Campbell Reith's assessment of the Applicant's Basement Impact Assessment for this application was put up on line yesterday. It was not unexpected that the Applicant's BIA failed to meet Camden's criteria in several important respects.

In my email to you dated 14 February I noted in respect of the BIA:
  the extent of the existing and proposed site plans are not adequate to indicate the   context of the proposal to no.196
  none of the plans nor the Arboricultural report show the trees and their RPAs in the front and rear gardens of no. 196 and other neighbouring gardens
· as Mr. Peel has noted, the BIA is insufficient for its purposes. The situation regarding ground water and surface water must be properly and fully considered before a Decision is made on this application. We note that you have commissioned an independent Audit as required and that is due by 25 February, the revised date for comments. My cousins will need time to evaluate the BIA, the Audit  and, if necessary, obtain independent advice. It …… will most likely need at least three weeks to review the need to commission [an independent report]. Boreholes would be required to be checked over a period of a year. These properties are situated close to areas at high risk of flooding. Mr. Peel has noted the extreme flooding events in the area in his objection
All of the above comments apply to which I add the following:

· there may be trees in other neighbouring gardens which are not shown on 
the drawings

· the tree in the garden of no. 196 adjacent to the boundary wall close to the 
site of the rear extension is extremely unlikely to survive

· The report states 'further details of the proposed construction methodology are requested to confirm how the stability of neighbouring foundations will be maintained.' Assumptions about the depth of the foundations, which you will see from Ralston Darlington's photographs, within his objection, show no. 196 has a cellar
· Ralston makes it very clear that flooding is a regular event and has been since 
he was a child. One can assume these events will become more frequent

· Ralston has also pointed out that all the maps in various policy documents 
show underground streams close to the site

· Campbell Reith do not appear to touch on the impact on groundwater and 
hydrogeology of the increase in allowed basement in the area

· the amount of movement affecting neighbouring properties cannot be 
presumed on the basis of guesswork of the depth of neighbours' foundations

· it is therefore too soon to make the judgement that damage to neighbouring 
properties would be limited to level 1 on the Burland scale

· the report states that there is an 'unproductive aquifer' below the site.
The report below states:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5a81bea540f0b62305b9093f/Groundwater_variability_summary.pdf 

6. If a development or activity is below the ground surface in an area shown as unproductive it could still pose a risk to aquifers if present below the unproductive strata. The vulnerability of those aquifers would depend on the depth of the activity relative to the base of the unproductive strata. 
If the aquifer were damaged there are two risks: 

· potable water from the aquifer could be contaminated

· potable water in another aquifer below the aquifer mentioned by the 
applicant could be contaminated

· there is no remedy if either of these events occur

· the depth of the aquifer(s) in relation to the depth of the foundations is not, 
as far as I can see, provided. 

· In any case Campbell Reith require changes to the level of the bottom of the 
foundations such that underpinning is at a consistent level 
across the site and 
so redesign is required
In general the important question is whether Camden's various levels of policy allow residential accommodation in basements in this area known for flooding at all. The area is indicated as an area at risk of flooding on every map in Camden's planning policy documents. 

Campbell Reith's report raises significant questions about the viability and safety of the proposals in this application. I would be very obliged if you would keep me informed on the applicant's responses to this report.
Kind regards,

Gail Waldman

Gail Waldman

